
CITY OF ISANTI 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, July 19, 2022 
Immediately following 7:00pm City Council Meeting 

CITY HALL 

1. Meeting Opening
A. Call to Order
B. Pledge of Allegiance
C. Roll Call
D. Agenda Modifications
E. Adopt the Agenda

2. Meeting Minutes

A. Approval of Minutes from the July 19, 2022 Planning Commission Meeting
B. Approval of Minutes from the August 3, 2022 Special Planning Commission

Meeting

3. Public Hearing

A. Request by the Isanti County Sheriff’s Office for approval of a Conditional Use Permit under
City Ordinance 445, Section 21, Article 2. Said request is to install a VHF Paging Repeater
on the City Water Tower at 601 E Dual Blvd NE for Telecommunication Services.

4. Other Business

5. Discussion Items

6. Adjournment



CITY OF ISANTI 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING  

TUESDAY, July 19, 2022 

Immediately following the 7:00 P.M City Council Meeting; 

1. Meeting Opening
A. Call to Order: Chair Johnson called the meeting to order at 7:59 p.m.
B. Pledge of Allegiance
C. Roll Call: Members present: Jeff Johnson, Steve Lundeen, Jimmy Gordan, Paul

Bergley, Dan Collison, Arissya Simon, Alexander Collins
Members Absent: None
Staff present: Community Development Specialist Ryan Saltis, Community
Development Director Stephanie Hillesheim, City Administrator Josi Wood, City
Clerk Jaden Strand, Finance Director Mike Betker

D. Agenda Modifications: None
E. Adopt the Agenda

Motion to adopt the agenda by Lundeen, second by Bergley motion passes 7-0.

2.  Meeting Minutes

A. Approval of Minutes from the June 21, 2022 Planning Commission Meeting, motion by
Collison, second by Simon, motion passes 7-0.

4. Public Hearing

A. Request by Marcus Construction for approval of a Conditional Use Permit under City
Ordinance 445, Section 21, Article 2 and Site Plan approval under City Ordinance
445, Section 18, said request is for a Dairy Queen restaurant with a drive-thru and an
outdoor patio area located in the B-2 General Business District and Highway 65
Overlay District at 280 5th Ave NE.

Saltis presented the request for Site Plan and Conditional Use Permit Approval for a 
building with a drive-thru and outdoor patio for Dairy Queen. Discussion was had 
between Planning Commission Members regarding building materials and 
appearance, signage, maneuverability of vehicles, and general site design. The owner, 
James was present at the meeting and available for questions. Planning Commission 
members asked when the restaurant is planning to open and how many employees 
will be hired. The owner responded by saying that DQ corporate has set a deadline for 
opening in November of 2023, but they hope to start in the fall of 2022 and finish in 
the Spring of 2023. The number of employees is expected to be roughly 50-75 
between full and part time workers. The Planning Commission asked if the requested 
conditions of approval could be met. The applicant said that the conditions requested 

 2.A.



 

by city staff can be met and are reasonable. No one else from the public spoke at the 
public hearing. Motion for approval of the site plans and CUP for a restaurant, drive-
thru facility and outdoor patio was made by Lundeen and seconded by Bergley, 
motion passed 7-0. 
 

B. Request by resident, Thomas Bowen, for amendment to City Ordinance 445, Section 
6, Articles 1,2,3,4,5 and 6 under “Special Regulations”. Said request is to include 
metal as an acceptable roofing material in all Residential Zoning Districts. 
 
Community Development Director Hillesheim presented the request for an Ordinance 
Amendment to allow metal roofs as a permitted material in all Residential Districts. It 
was mentioned that this discussion was first brought up by public comment during a 
City Council Meeting and that it was requested that staff look into changing the 
Ordinance. There was no one from the public present to speak on this item. Motion 
was made to approve the Ordinance Amendment by Lundeen seconded by Bergley, 
motion passed 7-0.  
 
    

      5. Other Business: Community Development Director Hillesheim reminded the Planning 
Commission of a special meeting being held on August 3rd.  

      6. Discussion Items: None  

      7. Adjournment: Motion by Bergley, 2nd by Lundeen to adjourn, motion passed 7-0, 
meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted by Ryan Saltis, Community Development Specialist  

 



CITY OF ISANTI 

SPECIAL PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

Wednesday, August 4, 2022 

6:30 P.M 

1. Meeting Opening
A. Call to Order: Chair Johnson called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.
B. Pledge of Allegiance
C. Roll Call: Members present: Jeff Johnson, Steve Lundeen, Jimmy Gordan, Paul

Bergley, Dan Collison, Arissya Simon, Alexander Collins
Members Absent: None
Staff present: Community Development Specialist Ryan Saltis, Community
Development Director Stephanie Hillesheim, City Administrator Josi Wood, City
Clerk Jaden Strand

D. Agenda Modifications: None
E. Adopt the Agenda

Motion to adopt the agenda by Collison, second by Lundeen motion passes 5-0.

2.  Meeting Minutes None 

3. Public Hearing

A. Request by BP Metals for approval of a Conditional Use Permit under City Ordinance
445, Section 21, Article 2, said request is for site modifications to allow Outdoor
Storage Containers at 825 E Dual Blvd NE.

Hillesheim presented the request for Conditional Use Permit Approval for outdoor 
storage for BP Metals. The owner, Blake Pendzimas and Contractor Brent Johnstone 
were present at the meeting and available for questions. Blake pointed out that the 
storage units would be placed on a gravel pad and not a concrete pad. The Planning 
Commission members asked how many containers they are intended on having. Blake 
said that he plans on having four storage containers that are roughly 40 ft in length 
placed on the 80 x 60 gravel pad on the southwest corner of the site. Discussion was 
had whether storage containers in an Industrial area would need screening from 
another Industrial property. Jimmy Gordon stated that he doesn’t believe the city 
should require screening of storage containers when they are only nearby other 
Industrial lots. Jimmy said that if storage containers are needed for the business that 
they should be allowed to have them. Planning Commission Member Collison 
questioned whether it is a good idea to allow storage units as a way of storing 
materials and that this could take a turn for the worse. Discussion was had regarding 
the tax base, in that storage containers are not permanent buildings and cannot be 

2.B.



 

taxed. Several members of the Planning Commission agreed that storage containers 
should be allowed in the Industrial Park District. It was determined that the language 
in the zoning ordinances should be amended to reflect the allowance of storage 
containers and other regulations to make it more clear at a later meeting. Screening 
for the storage units and additional proposed trash dumpsters was discussed and 
determined that the location of this business is nearby railroad tracks and other 
Industrial zoned properties. It was determined that screening would not be needed for 
this specific request due to the location of the pad, nearby properties being zoned 
Industrial, and existing vegetation that would screen the storage from other lots. No 
one else from the public spoke at the public hearing. Motion for approval of the CUP 
for outdoor storage without any screening was made by Bergley and seconded by 
Gordon, motion passed 6-1. 
 

      4. Other Business: None  
 
      5. Discussion Items: None  

      6. Adjournment: Motion by Lundeen, 2nd by Bergley to adjourn, motion passed 7-0, 
meeting adjourned at 7:02 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted by Ryan Saltis, Community Development Specialist  

 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Planning Commission  

FROM: Ryan Saltis, Community Development Specialist 

DATE:  August 16, 2022 

SUBJECT: CUP approval for Installing Telecommunications Services on the City Water 
Tower 

Request: The applicant, Isanti County Sheriff’s Office is requesting CUP approval to install 
a VHF Paging Repeater and antenna on the City Water Tower located at PID 16.090.0150.  

Overview/Background:  The Isanti County Sheriff’s Office needs to install a new VHF 
(Very High Frequency) radio repeater and associated antenna on the Water Tower in Isanti. This 
VHF repeater is needed to provide improved radio paging and emergency alerting capabilities for 
the fire and EMS agencies in the Isanti area. A water tower of this height provides a good location 
for the antenna and repeater, and eliminates the need for the construction of a new radio tower.   

Analysis of Application:   Telecommunication and Antenna Towers are regulated in Section 
13, Subd. 18 of the City’s Zoning Ordinances. These regulations are mostly for new 
telecommunications towers that would be constructed in the city. The regulations most relevant 
for adding antennas to an existing tower are the following:  

c. Describes the tower’s capacity, including the number and type of antennas that it
accommodates;

d. Documents what steps the applicant will take to avoid interference with
established public safety telecommunications;

The attached Isanti County VHF Radio Paging Antenna Planning Review document explains that 
the proposed repeater is not expected to impact current radio frequencies and the current wireless 
carriers on the water tower have stated “no objection” to the proposed VHF installation. This 
report also states that the antenna and transmitter operate in a different frequency spectrum than 
any of the wireless services on the water tower (T-Mobile Cellular, Genesis Wireless and 
WinWater Wireless). The proposed VHF transmitter will also not be operating continuously, as 
is the case with other wireless services. The transmitter will only be activated when emergency 
paging is needed. There are currently two unused mounting pipes on the water tower in which 

 3.A.



either of these would support the proposed antenna for Isanti County. The Company who put the 
review together, RFCC Communications Consulting, has recommended that the City of Isanti 
approve the proposed VHF system installation which will allow important public safety radio 
service to be implemented in the area.  

 

Conditional Use Permit Standards: 

1. In review of the standards established in Section 21, Article 2, Conditional Use (D); the 
following conclusions have been made (conclusions to each requirement are shown in italics): 
 
A. The proposed action has been considered in relation to the specific policies and provisions 

of and has been found to be consistent with the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive 
Plan, including public facilities and capital improvement plans.  
The nature of the request is consistent with the goals and objectives of Isanti’s Comprehensive Plan 
in that the proposed Telecommunications Services will improve public safety.  
 

B. The proposed action meets the purpose and intent of this Ordinance and the underlying 
zoning district.  
Telecommunications Systems are Conditional Uses in the I-1 zoning district, applying for the 
CUP meets the purpose and intent.  

 
C. The establishment, maintenance or operation of the conditional use will promote and 

enhance the general public welfare and will not be detrimental or endanger the public 
health, safety, morals, or comfort.  
The VHF Radio Paging Antenna will benefit the public and will not be detrimental or 
endanger the public.  
 

D. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property within 
the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted; nor substantially diminish or 
impair property values within the neighborhood.   
The conditional uses will not diminish or impair surrounding property values.  
 

E. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district. 
The conditional uses will not impede on the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of surrounding property. 
 

F. Adequate public facilities and services are available or can be reasonably provided to 
accommodate the use which is proposed.  
The water tower currently has two unused mounts for telecommunications services and has 
the capacity to provide and accommodate the proposed use.   
  

 



G. The conditional use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the 
district in which it is located.  
The conditional uses meet this requirement and follow the regulations set in the I-1 
Industrial Park Zoning District.  

 
H. The conditional use complies with the general and specific performance standards as 

specified by within this Article.  
The conditional use meets the requirements in which Telecommunication and Antenna 
Towers are set in Section 13, Subd. 18 of the City’s Zoning Ordinances. 
 

Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit for the 
proposed VHF Paging Repeater on the City Water Tower located at PID 16.090.0150 with the 
following conditions:  

Conditions: 

• A Building Permit will be required for the installation of the Radio Repeater and Antenna 
• Any other Conditions made by the City of Isanti Planning Commission and City Council 

 

Attachments: 

• Isanti County - VHF Radio Paging Antenna Planning Review 
 












	8-16-22 Planning Commission Agenda
	2.A. Approval of Minutes from the July 19, 2022 Planning Commission Meeting
	2.B. Approval of Minutes from the August 3, 2022 Special Planning Commission Meeting
	3.A. Request by the Isanti County Sheriff’s Office for approval of a Conditional Use Permit under City Ordinance 445, Section 21, Article 2. Said request is to install a VHF Paging Repeater on the City Water Tower at 601 E Dual Blvd NE for Telecommunication Services



